
 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Tuesday, January 19, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

***ANYONE ENTERING THE BOARDROOM MUST  

WEAR A MASK AT ALL TIMES*** 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting January 4, 2021.  (CCD) 

2. Adopt a Resolution for the purchase of one (1) 2021 Chevrolet Tahoe for use as a staff vehicle.  

(TAFD) 

3. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Depository Board to execute the 2021 depository 

agreement with Commercial National Bank. (FIN) 

REGULAR 

4. Adopt a Resolution to select an operator and award the lease agreement for the operation of 

Iron Mountain Center. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

5. Adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 26, Article II, Sections 26-28 and 26-29 of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances to provide for revisions to water and sewer rates. 

(TWU) Executive Director JD Phillips and TWU Finance Director Jim Cornelius  

An emergency clause is requested.  An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

6. Adopt a Resolution approving the Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) FY 2020-2021 Budget. 

(TWU) Executive Director JD Phillips and TWU Finance Director Jim Cornelius  

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 



 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. Per Resolution No. 2018-9  Code of Conduct of 

the Board of Directors 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, February 1, 2021 

ADJOURN 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting January 4, 2021.  (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: January 19, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/a 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, January 04, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Mayor Allen Brown. 

OATH OF OFFICE 

Texarkana, Arkansas District Judge Wren Autrey administered the Oath of Office to Terry 

Roberts, Director Ward 1 - Laney Harris, Director Ward 2 - Jeff Hart, Director Ward 6. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director Barbara S. 

Miner, and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Attorney George Matteson, City Clerk 

Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors entered into Executive Session at 6:06 PM. 

The meeting reconvened at 6:31 PM. 

1. Election of Assistant Mayor 

Motion to nominate Director Hollibush as Assistant Mayor made by Director Roberts, 

Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, Director Hart. 

The motion carried 7-0.  Mayor Brown declared the nomination adopted. 

Texarkana, Arkansas District Judge Wren Autrey gave the Oath of Office to Assistant 

Mayor Steven Hollibush.  

2. Resolution No. 2021-1 made the following appointments to the Board of Directors’ 

boards, commissions and committees:  Advertising and Promotion Commission – Director 

Ulysses Brewer and Director Barbara Miner; Council of Governments Board – Director 

Jeff Hart; Economic Development Committee – Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor 

Hollibush, Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Roberts; Emergency Medical 



 

Systems Committee – Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Roberts; Employees 

Retirement System Committee – Mayor Brown and Director Harris; Intergovernmental 

Advisory Committee – Mayor Brown and Director Brewer; Metropolitan Planning 

Organization Policy Committee – Assistant Mayor Hollibush and Director Miner; Public 

Utilities Committee – Director Brewer, Director Harris, Director Miner; Solid Waste 

Management Committee – Mayor Brown, Director Hart, Director Roberts; Texarkana 

Urban Transit District Board – Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director Harris, Director Hart. 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Hollibush 

Voting Yea:  Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0.  Mayor Brown declared the resolution adopted. 

CONSENT 

Director Harris made the motion to adopt the Consent Agenda, Seconded by Director Hart.  The 

motion was carried, and the following items were approved: 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular rescheduled meeting December 21, 2020 and the called 

meeting December 29, 2020.  (CCD) 

4. Resolution No. 2021-2 authorized and directed the City Manager to enter into a renewal 

agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for services of two (2) officers assigned 

from the Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department for special patrols and enforcement 

operations on Housing Authority properties. (TAPD)  

5. Resolution No. 2021-3 authorized the purchase of five (5) 2021 Ford Explorer (Hybrid Model) 

for use as patrol units. (TAPD)  

6. Resolution No. 2021-4 designated the City’s Franchise Fee Secured Refunding Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2021-A, as qualified tax-exempt bonds. (FIN)  

REGULAR 

7. Ordinance No. 1-2021 authorized the purchase of five (5) WatchGuard Camera System 

VISTA HD Wi-Fi and 4RE System Bundle. (TAPD) Interim Chief Kristi Bennett and Captain 

James Atchley  

 Director Harris asked when the body cameras were turned on and off. 

 Captain James Atchley said when the police officer received a 911 call, the body camera 

would turn on. 

 Director Harris asked how long they kept the videos from the camera. 

 Captain James Atchley said if it were related to a case, it would be kept until the case was 

completed.  

 Director Brewer asked if the tactile operation center were able to monitor the officer turning 

the camera on and off.  



 

 Captain James Atchley said it would be after the fact, but they could see when the camera 

came on and turned off. 

 Motion to place the ordinance on its first reading in abbreviated form made by Director Harris, 

Seconded by Director Brewer 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Miner, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0.  The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested.  An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to approve the emergency clause made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director 

Hart.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0.  The Mayor declared the emergency clause approved.  

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Carl Nelson, 609 Manor Way, spoke about the potholes in Lakewood Estates and the lights that 

were out on Interstate 30.  He said when it rained Windstream 911 calls were placed and it ended 



 

up being a 911-hangup nuisance call.  He also spoke about the Interlocal council meeting coming 

up.   

Mike Malone, President of the Texarkana Chamber of Commerce, introduced Robin Bass, a new 

member of their staff working in the Economic Development Department. 

Robin Bass said she was looking forward to working with the City. 

Director Miner said she got a call about the water in Forest Park area.  She said a citizen got 

water in their house again.       

NEXT MEETING DATE: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, Director Hart.  

The meeting adjourned at 6:55 PM. 

APPROVAL of the minutes on this 19th day of January, 2021. 

 

 

__________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution for the purchase of one (1) 2021 Chevrolet Tahoe 

for use as a staff vehicle.  (TAFD) 

AGENDA DATE: January 19, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Fire Department 

PREPARED BY: Chief David Fletcher 

REQUEST: Vehicle purchase 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: TAFD will be replacing a 2008 model year staff vehicle that is no longer 

adequate for its intended function. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $36,934 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $45,000 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

TAFD 2021 Budget Line Item (101-131-50501-54001) $36,934 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Arkansas State Contract detailing specifications and 

options. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary to purchase (1) 2021 Chevrolet Tahoe for the use as 

Texarkana Arkansas Fire Department (TAFD); and    

WHEREAS, said vehicle is available to purchase through Bale Chevrolet at a price 

of $36,640.00; and 

WHEREAS, such purchase complies with Ark. Code Ann. § 14-58-104; and  

WHEREAS, funds are available in TAFD 2021 Budget Line Item 101-131-54001-

50501; and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized 

to execute a contract and take such action as requested to acquire the vehicle described 

above and upon the terms so indicated.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of January, 2021. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Depository Board to execute the 

2021 depository agreement with Commercial National Bank. (FIN) 

AGENDA DATE: January 19, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: This agreement involves a house-keeping measure that requires City 

Board approval. The Depository Board of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas will execute the attached 2021 local bank depository 

agreement with Commercial National Bank. The Depository Agreement 

for Regions Bank was approved by the Board of Directors and executed 

February 6, 2013. The depository agreement with Bank of the Ozarks 

was approved by the Board of Directors and executed February 2, 2015. 

They do not expire until the security interest has been terminated. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend Board approval.  

EXHIBITS: Resolution and local bank depository agreement for Commercial 

National Bank 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, the Depository Agreement for Commercial National Bank has 

expired; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend execution of the 2021 

Depository Agreement with Commercial National Bank; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Depository Board is hereby authorized and directed to 

enter into a Depository Agreement with Commercial National Bank, and may deposit the 

funds of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas pursuant to that agreement and A.C.A. 19-8-101, 

et seq. and 19-8-201, et seq. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of January, 2021. 

 

 

______________________________ 

          Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 
 







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to select an operator and award the lease agreement 

for the operation of Iron Mountain Center. (PWD) Public Works 

Director Tyler Richards 

AGENDA DATE: 01/19/2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works  

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: To Select an Operator and Award Lease Agreement for the Operation of 

Iron Mountain Center. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: An emergency clause is not needed as this will be approved by 

resolution. 

SUMMARY: The City advertised a request for proposals for the operation of Iron 

Mountain Center located at 1101 Couch Street in November 2020.  Two 

proposals were submitted from Tracy Jones – Know Your Worth 

Ministry, 9120 White Oak Ln, Texarkana, TX 75503 and LaToyia 

Hawkins Williams, 3515 Arista Blvd. #435, Texarkana, TX 75503. 

Both proposals were deemed worthy by staff to be presented to the Board 

of Directors.   

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend the candidate be selected by the 

Board of Directors. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Know Your Worth Ministry Lease Agreement and LaToyia 

Howkins Williams Lease Agreement 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City for Community Centers to remain 

viable and, in consideration of the public benefit an advantage provided by the same the 

City does desire to lease the Iron Mountain Center; and  

WHEREAS, upon review of responses to an advertised request for proposals for 

the lease of Iron Mountain Center, the City staff identified two (2) apparently equally 

qualified potential lessees; and  

WHEREAS, spokespersons for each such potential lessee have made presentations 

to the entire Board of Directors concerning the lease of the center; and 

WHEREAS, upon consideration of the presentations, the original request for 

proposals, the applications submitted by such two potential lessees, and all other matters 

herein, the Board has decided on a lessee of the center;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, that ______________  is hereby awarded a lease of the Iron Mountain Center, 

in form and substance to be reviewed and approved by the City Manager and the City 

Attorney, provided, that said lease shall not contain a rental term of greater than five (5) 

years, and, shall retain the City’s ability to terminate the lease at any time, for any reason, 

or for no reason, upon ninety (90) days written notice.   

PASSED and APPROVED this 19th day of January, 2021.    

 

 
 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 



 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

 





































 

 

STATE OF ARKANSAS  
COUNTY OF MILLER 
 
 
LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS AND 

LATOYIA HAWKINS WILLIAMS 
 
THIS LEASE, made and enter into this        day of                    2021, by and 
between the CITY OF TEXARKANA, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and the 
LATOYIA HOWKINS WILLIAMS hereinafter referred to as the "Agency". 
 

WITNESSTH: 
 

1. For an in consideration of the public benefit and advantage, and the rent 
contained herein, commencing January 18, 2021 the City does hereby lease 
to the Agency through December 31, 2021 with recurring annual options of a 
twelve month lease renew, the hereinafter described real property (building 
and lands) situated in Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas, and more 
commonly referred to as the "Iron Mountain Neighborhood Center" located at 
1101 Couch Street in Texarkana, Arkansas. 

 
2. The Agency, as rental for said property, agrees to pay to the City during the 

term of this lease an annual rental fee of $1.00.  
 
3. Included as part of the terms of this lease, the City agrees to leave all of its 

personal property, i.e., desk, chairs, furniture, etc., presently located at the 
Iron Mountain Neighborhood Center (The "Center") for the use and benefit of 
the Agency and its clientele during the time in which the Agency continues to 
operate the Center.  However, it is specifically understood that the City has 
no obligation to replace such articles of personal property, equipment or 
furnishings should such articles ever become non-usable or ever be 
damaged or destroyed. Replacement of these articles shall be at the 
expense and discretion of the Agency. It is expected that the Agency during 
the term of this lease will use, maintain and protect such articles as if they 
were its own and will not use such furnishings or equipment for anything 
other than their originally intended uses. An annual property inventory of City 
property will be presented to the City each year.   

 
4. The Agency shall operate the Center for the public benefit and advantage 

during the hours of 6:00 o'clock a.m. to 10:00 o'clock p.m., Sunday through 
Saturday, including holidays, and during any other hours at which the 
Agency desires to schedule the use of the facilities with the City–it being 
understood that the City shall have SECOND priority for the use of the 
Center during any other hours outside of its normal operation.   
 

5. The Agency, during the term of this lease, shall provide insurance coverage 
for all of its own furnishings and equipment and shall also maintain general 
liability insurance in the minimum amount of $600,000.00 regarding or 
covering all of its operations while on the premises of the Center, the 
activities sponsored by the Agency, and any other actions on the part of its 
management, agents, representatives or personnel.  In addition, the agency 



 

 

shall provide any worker's compensation insurance which may be required 
as a result of its operation of the Center.  Further, the Agency shall protect, 
indemnify and hold the City, its officers, agents and employees, harmless 
from any and all liability, cost, claims, demands, suits, actions or causes of 
action for nuisance or for injuries to persons or damage to or loss of property 
suffered or incurred on the demised premises or in any manner arising from, 
growing out of, or caused by the use of occupancy of the Center by the 
Agency, its employees, tenants, licensees or invitees. Proof of insurance 
coverage's shall be provided to the City annually. 

 
6. Annual financial statement will be provided to the City detailing all receipts 

and disbursements made through the year no later than January 31 of each 
year. Such statements may be subject to City audit. 

 
 

7. The Agency shall create for staff review a set of Center rules and regulations 
and enforce all rules and regulations.  There shall be no smoking, alcohol, or 
other known hazardous activities allowed in the Center. 

 
8. That the agency that governs the Centers be formally organized, (i.e. 

incorporated) and regulated by a set of bylaws adopted by the Agency's 
Board. 

 
9. Current list of Board Members and staff of the Center be provided to the City 

annually. 
 

10. The Agency, for itself, and for all its invitees, licensees, tenants and 
subleases, covenants and agrees to comply with all laws, ordinances and 
regulations adopted and passed from time to time by the City, the State of 
Arkansas and the United States of America. 

 
11. No signs shall be constructed or erected upon the property without the prior 

consent of the Public Works Director. 
 

12. The City, its officers, agents and employees shall have the right to enter the 
premises at all reasonable times and for all reasonable purposes. 

 
13. The Agency shall not assign this lease without the prior written consent of 

the City. 
 

14. In the event either party herein violates any of the terms, covenants or 
conditions of this lease and such violation continues for 15 days after written 
notice to the violating party, then the other party may elect to terminate said 
lease agreement upon that party giving 10 day notice of such election to the 
violating party.  In the event the Agency at any time has its funding sources 
eliminated or reduced to the point that the Agency can no longer continue to 
perform its operations, the Agency may notify the City of such circumstances 
and terminate the lease herein.  Further, should the Agency's funding 
sources be reduced, but the Agency still desires to operate the Center, the 
parties may renegotiate the terms by mutual agreement. The designated 
agent and address of each party for purposes of notification regarding any 



 

 

action under the terms of this lease shall be as follows: 
 

City Manager 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 
P. O. Box 2711 
Texarkana, AR 75504 
(870) 779-4954 

Latoyia Howkins Williams 
3515 Arista Blvd. #435 
Texarkana, Texas 75503 
 903-280-6124 
 
 
 
 
 

15. Upon the expiration of their termination of this agreement, the Agency's 
rights to use the premises herein leased shall cease and the Agency shall 
forthwith surrender possession of same, unless otherwise mutually agreed 
upon in writing by the parties. 

 
16. During the term of this lease, the Agency shall be responsible for transferring 

all utilities into said Agency Name, maintaining the grounds and facilities 
normal operational maintenance (i.e. lawn care after the first twelve months, 
preventative HVAC Maintenance – yearly inspection, cleaning and charging 
system, painting, minor plumbing, windows, etc.) providing janitorial services 
for the Center and shall maintain the Center in a reasonable and prudent 
manner.  The City shall be responsible for providing lawn care services to 
the organization for the first twelve months of operation, the structural, major 
plumbing problems and mechanical replacements (roof, new HVAC, 
foundation) in excess of $500 of the Center. No repairs which the Agency 
deems or believes to be the obligation of the City, nor any alternations or 
additions may be made to the structure without the prior consent of the 
Public Works Director and proper permits being issued.   
 
(i) Please see Attachment A to this document regarding preventative 

maintenance. 
 

17. It is expressly agreed and acknowledged by the parties hereto and 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein: 
 
(i) The City may terminate this lease at any time and for any reason or 

for no reason upon ninety (90) day’s written notice to the Agency; 
(ii) The City shall have no obligation to rebuild or repair the facility in the 

event of any casualty (including, without limitation, flood, fire or 
windstorm) that destroys all or any portion of the subject property or 
any improvements now or hereafter located thereon; 

(iii) The Agency shall be solely responsible for and shall reimburse the 
City for any maintenance or costs incurred by the City in the repair of 
any damage to the leased premises or any portion thereof caused or 
arising from the intentional act or neglect of the Agency or the 
Agency’s directors, officers, members, guests, invitees, licensee’s, 
permittees or anyone else on or using the subject property with the 
permission of, for the benefit of or with the knowledge (actual or 
otherwise) of the Agency; 

(iv) Any maintenance item arising hereunder that is alleged to be the 
obligation of the City must be preapproved by the City’s Director of 
Public Works before the City will be actually obligated to carry-out or 
pay for such maintenance; 

(v) Operation of the Agency is independent from the City in all respects 



 

 

and no relationship other than that of the landlord and tenant exists 
between the parties; and 

(vi) Time is of the essence with respect to the terms of this lease. 
(vii) In no event are the actions, inactions, statements, or activities of 

Agency, in connection with this Lease, operation of the Center, or 
otherwise, the actions, inactions, statements or activities of the City, 
and shall not be deemed as such; 

(viii) Neither Agency, nor any employee, officer, director, agent, or other 
representative of Agency and agent, employee or other 
representative of the City and nothing contained herein is intended, 
nor shall be deemed to constitute authorization (express or implied) 
to act or represent as such. 

(ix) During the terms of this Lease, agency shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, local laws, rules and regulations, including, 
without limitation any as might apply due to the ownership of the 
Center or the lands surrounding the same by the City or its 
successors. 
 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties to this agreement have hereunto set their 
hands in duplicate, the day and year SECOND hereinabove written. 
 
 
   _______________________________ 
   Kenny Haskin, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
   
   
       
      A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

LaToyia Hawkins Williams 
Tracie Lynn Lee,  
Asst. Public Works Director 



 

 

ATTACHMENT A: 

What is Routine Maintenance? 

 

Definition  

Routine maintenance is defined as: Expenditures made for the regular upkeep of 

physical properties (i.e. Land, Buildings, and Equipment) including recurring, 

preventive and on-going maintenance necessary to delay or prevent the failure of 

critical and non-critical building systems and equipment.  

 

ROUTINE, PREVENTIVE, DEFERRED MAINTENANCE 

The majority of daily tasks performed by the Physical Facilities staff are classified as 

routine maintenance (service calls).  Typical routine maintenance tasks include 

responding to the following requests but not limited to: 

 

a. HVAC—uncomfortable space temperature. 

b. Plumbing—dripping faucet or clogged sink/toilet. 

c. Electrical—power malfunction or burned out light bulb. 

d. Painting—walls are scratched or faded, door tiles are broken. 

e. Carpentry—broken door, ceiling tile replacement, key replacement. 

 

Preventive Maintenance 

An important part of physical facilities operations is preventing maintenance. Major 

breakdowns to critical equipment and system are expensive to repair and create 

undesired disruption in the work environments of the center and city staff.  

Preventive maintenance maximizes equipment and system efficiency, which reduces 

energy consumption. It also enhances the center’s appearance. 

 

A preventive maintenance plan is defined as regularly scheduled inspection of 

building structures and their equipment and building systems for signs of wear and 

tear that will require routine and/or corrective maintenance. The following list is 

samples of the different types of preventive maintenance programs the leasee will be 

responsible for: 

 
o Periodic inspection of HVAC equipment.  
o Change HVAC air filters once a month. 
o Provide yearly maintenance of HVAC Unit. 
o High voltage building transformers and switches are inspected and cleaned 

once a year. 
o Certified termite inspector inspects the building on an annual basis. 
o Fire safety inspections are conducted monthly. 
o Strip & wax floors. 

 











 

 

STATE OF ARKANSAS  
COUNTY OF MILLER 
 
 
LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS AND 

KNOW YOUR WORTH MNINISTRY 
 
THIS LEASE, made and enter into this        day of                    2021, by and 
between the CITY OF TEXARKANA, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and the 
KNOW YOUR WORTH MINISTRY hereinafter referred to as the "Agency". 
 

WITNESSTH: 
 

1. For and in consideration of the public benefit and advantage, and the rent 
contained herein, commencing January 18, 2021 the City does hereby lease 
to the Agency through December 31, 2021 with recurring annual options of a 
twelve month lease renew, the hereinafter described real property (building 
and lands) situated in Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas, and more 
commonly referred to as the "Iron Mountain Neighborhood Center" located at 
1101 Couch Street in Texarkana, Arkansas. 

 
2. The Agency, as rental for said property, agrees to pay to the City during the 

term of this lease an annual rental fee of $1.00.  
 
3. Included as part of the terms of this lease, the City agrees to leave all of its 

personal property, i.e., desk, chairs, furniture, etc., presently located at the 
Iron Mountain Neighborhood Center (The "Center") for the use and benefit of 
the Agency and its clientele during the time in which the Agency continues to 
operate the Center.  However, it is specifically understood that the City has 
no obligation to replace such articles of personal property, equipment or 
furnishings should such articles ever become non-usable or ever be 
damaged or destroyed. Replacement of these articles shall be at the 
expense and discretion of the Agency. It is expected that the Agency during 
the term of this lease will use, maintain and protect such articles as if they 
were its own and will not use such furnishings or equipment for anything 
other than their originally intended uses. An annual property inventory of City 
property will be presented to the City each year.   

 
4. The Agency shall operate the Center for the public benefit and advantage 

during the hours of 6:00 o'clock a.m. to 10:00 o'clock p.m., Sunday through 
Saturday, including holidays, and during any other hours at which the 
Agency desires to schedule the use of the facilities with the City–it being 
understood that the City shall have SECOND priority for the use of the 
Center during any other hours outside of its normal operation.   
 

5. The Agency, during the term of this lease, shall provide insurance coverage 
for all of its own furnishings and equipment and shall also maintain general 
liability insurance in the minimum amount of $600,000.00 regarding or 
covering all of its operations while on the premises of the Center, the 
activities sponsored by the Agency, and any other actions on the part of its 
management, agents, representatives or personnel.  In addition, the agency 



 

 

shall provide any worker's compensation insurance which may be required 
as a result of its operation of the Center.  Further, the Agency shall protect, 
indemnify and hold the City, its officers, agents and employees, harmless 
from any and all liability, cost, claims, demands, suits, actions or causes of 
action for nuisance or for injuries to persons or damage to or loss of property 
suffered or incurred on the demised premises or in any manner arising from, 
growing out of, or caused by the use of occupancy of the Center by the 
Agency, its employees, tenants, licensees or invitees. Proof of insurance 
coverage's shall be provided to the City annually. 

 
6. Annual financial statement will be provided to the City detailing all receipts 

and disbursements made through the year no later than January 31 of each 
year. Such statements may be subject to City audit. 

 
 

7. The Agency shall create for staff review a set of Center rules and regulations 
and enforce all rules and regulations.  There shall be no smoking, alcohol, or 
other known hazardous activities allowed in the Center. 

 
8. That the agencyw that governs the Centers be formally organized, (i.e. 

incorporated) and regulated by a set of bylaws adopted by the Agency's 
Board. 

 
9. Current list of Board Members and staff of the Center be provided to the City 

annually. 
 

10. The Agency, for itself, and for all its invitees, licensees, tenants and 
subleases, covenants and agrees to comply with all laws, ordinances and 
regulations adopted and passed from time to time by the City, the State of 
Arkansas and the United States of America. 

 
11. No signs shall be constructed or erected upon the property without the prior 

consent of the Public Works Director. 
 

12. The City, its officers, agents and employees shall have the right to enter the 
premises at all reasonable times and for all reasonable purposes. 

 
13. The Agency shall not assign this lease without the prior written consent of 

the City. 
 

14. In the event either party herein violates any of the terms, covenants or 
conditions of this lease and such violation continues for 15 days after written 
notice to the violating party, then the other party may elect to terminate said 
lease agreement upon that party giving 10 day notice of such election to the 
violating party.  In the event the Agency at any time has its funding sources 
eliminated or reduced to the point that the Agency can no longer continue to 
perform its operations, the Agency may notify the City of such circumstances 
and terminate the lease herein.  Further, should the Agency's funding 
sources be reduced, but the Agency still desires to operate the Center, the 
parties may renegotiate the terms by mutual agreement. The designated 
agent and address of each party for purposes of notification regarding any 



 

 

action under the terms of this lease shall be as follows: 
 

City Manager 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 
P. O. Box 2711 
Texarkana, AR 75504 
(870) 779-4954 

Tracy Jones, Founder 
Know Your Worth Ministry 
9120 White Oak Ln 
Texarkana, Texas 75503 
 903-490-4139 
 
 
 
 
 

15. Upon the expiration of their termination of this agreement, the Agency's 
rights to use the premises herein leased shall cease and the Agency shall 
forthwith surrender possession of same, unless otherwise mutually agreed 
upon in writing by the parties. 

 
16. During the term of this lease, the Agency shall be responsible for transferring 

all utilities into said Agency Name, maintaining the grounds and facilities 
normal operational maintenance (i.e. lawn care after the first twelve months, 
preventative HVAC Maintenance – yearly inspection, cleaning and charging 
system, painting, minor plumbing, windows, etc.) providing janitorial services 
for the Center and shall maintain the Center in a reasonable and prudent 
manner.  The City shall be responsible for providing lawn care services to 
the organization for the first twelve months of operation, the structural, major 
plumbing problems and mechanical replacements (roof, new HVAC, 
foundation) in excess of $500 of the Center. No repairs which the Agency 
deems or believes to be the obligation of the City, nor any alternations or 
additions may be made to the structure without the prior consent of the 
Public Works Director and proper permits being issued.   
 
(i) Please see Attachment A to this document regarding preventative 

maintenance. 
 

17. It is expressly agreed and acknowledged by the parties hereto and 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein: 
 
(i) The City may terminate this lease at any time and for any reason or 

for no reason upon ninety (90) day’s written notice to the Agency; 
(ii) The City shall have no obligation to rebuild or repair the facility in the 

event of any casualty (including, without limitation, flood, fire or 
windstorm) that destroys all or any portion of the subject property or 
any improvements now or hereafter located thereon; 

(iii) The Agency shall be solely responsible for and shall reimburse the 
City for any maintenance or costs incurred by the City in the repair of 
any damage to the leased premises or any portion thereof caused or 
arising from the intentional act or neglect of the Agency or the 
Agency’s directors, officers, members, guests, invitees, licensee’s, 
permittees or anyone else on or using the subject property with the 
permission of, for the benefit of or with the knowledge (actual or 
otherwise) of the Agency; 

(iv) Any maintenance item arising hereunder that is alleged to be the 
obligation of the City must be preapproved by the City’s Director of 
Public Works before the City will be actually obligated to carry-out or 
pay for such maintenance; 

(v) Operation of the Agency is independent from the City in all respects 



 

 

and no relationship other than that of the landlord and tenant exists 
between the parties; and 

(vi) Time is of the essence with respect to the terms of this lease. 
(vii) In no event are the actions, inactions, statements, or activities of 

Agency, in connection with this Lease, operation of the Center, or 
otherwise, the actions, inactions, statements or activities of the City, 
and shall not be deemed as such; 

(viii) Neither Agency, nor any employee, officer, director, agent, or other 
representative of Agency and agent, employee or other 
representative of the City and nothing contained herein is intended, 
nor shall be deemed to constitute authorization (express or implied) 
to act or represent as such. 

(ix) During the terms of this Lease, agency shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, local laws, rules and regulations, including, 
without limitation any as might apply due to the ownership of the 
Center or the lands surrounding the same by the City or its 
successors. 
 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties to this agreement have hereunto set their 
hands in duplicate, the day and year SECOND hereinabove written. 
 
 
   _______________________________ 
   Kenny Haskin, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
   
   
       
      A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Tracy Jones, Founder 
Executive Director / Board President 
 

Tracie Lynn Lee, 
Asst. Public Works Director 



 

 

ATTACHMENT A: 

What is Routine Maintenance? 

 

Definition  

Routine maintenance is defined as: Expenditures made for the regular upkeep of 

physical properties (i.e. Land, Buildings, and Equipment) including recurring, 

preventive and on-going maintenance necessary to delay or prevent the failure of 

critical and non-critical building systems and equipment.  

 

ROUTINE, PREVENTIVE, DEFERRED MAINTENANCE 

The majority of daily tasks performed by the Physical Facilities staff are classified as 

routine maintenance (service calls).  Typical routine maintenance tasks include 

responding to the following requests but not limited to: 

 

a. HVAC—uncomfortable space temperature. 

b. Plumbing—dripping faucet or clogged sink/toilet. 

c. Electrical—power malfunction or burned out light bulb. 

d. Painting—walls are scratched or faded, door tiles are broken. 

e. Carpentry—broken door, ceiling tile replacement, key replacement. 

 

Preventive Maintenance 

An important part of physical facilities operations is preventing maintenance. Major 

breakdowns to critical equipment and system are expensive to repair and create 

undesired disruption in the work environments of the center and city staff.  

Preventive maintenance maximizes equipment and system efficiency, which reduces 

energy consumption. It also enhances the center’s appearance. 

 

A preventive maintenance plan is defined as regularly scheduled inspection of 

building structures and their equipment and building systems for signs of wear and 

tear that will require routine and/or corrective maintenance. The following list is 

samples of the different types of preventive maintenance programs the leasee will be 

responsible for: 

 
o Periodic inspection of HVAC equipment.  
o Change HVAC air filters once a month. 
o Provide yearly maintenance of HVAC Unit. 
o High voltage building transformers and switches are inspected and cleaned 

once a year. 
o Certified termite inspector inspects the building on an annual basis. 
o Fire safety inspections are conducted monthly. 
o Strip & wax floors. 

 



 
 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

FOR 

OPERATION OF THE 

 
IRON MOUNTAIN NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 

 

 

 

 
September 28, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBMIT PROPOSALS TO: The City of Texarkana 

216 Walnut St./P.O. Box 2711, Texarkana, TX 75504 

Phone No. 870-779-4977 Fax No. 870-773-2395 

 

 

 

PROPOSAL DEADLINE – Proposals must be received 

(not postmarked) by 5:00 PM on Tuesday, November 10, 

2020 
 



2  

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

The City of Texarkana is requesting innovative Business Plan proposals for a quality/ qualified 

operator for the City’s existing IRON MOUNTAIN Neighborhood Center located at 1101 Couch 

Street in Texarkana. The City is seeking proposals for an operator to provide services at the site 

with a quality, financially sound program that will complement the existing community.  The 

proposals should address the City’s goals of an operator that creates a quality environment and 

has a positive social impact for the City of Texarkana. 

 

The primary objective of the Operator of the IRON MOUNTAIN Neighborhood Center   will be 

to provide quality recreational programs and services for children, adults and senior citizens with 

the upmost level of customer service and maintenance and care of the facility. Though rental 

of the facility for family and community events and celebrations is desired, the rental of the 

IRON MOUNTAIN Neighborhood Center facility should not be the main purpose of the 

Operator. 

 

II. BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Texarkana is located between the state line of Arkansas and Texas and serves the 

community as a Twin City. The City of Texarkana was incorporated in 1873. The community 

covers over 50 square miles of area and had a population estimated at 30,681 in 2013.  Our city is 

unique in many ways.  As you are entering Texarkana, the large sign greeting you on the outskirts 

of town proclaims, “twice as nice.” If you’ve never been through our town you may wonder, 

“what does that’ twice as nice’ statement mean.” For all practical purposes, Texarkana is one city 

but it’s actually two cities! 

 

Texarkana is a great place to live and visit.  It has affordable housing, good schools, a   safe 

family environment and all the services required by its citizens.  One of the joys of living in 

Texarkana is the warm friendliness of its people. Friendliness is an attitude here.  It’s an 

intangible characteristic that a person is born with! 

 

III. CURRENT SERVICES PROVIDED 

 

Currently there are no services being provided at the center other than a daily meal that is served 

by a lifelong resident of the IRON MOUNTAIN Neighborhood and has been heavily involved in 

the center since its inception. The City encourages her continued involvement in any way 

possible as she is loved and respected in the community. 

 

The Community Center facility includes a playground and a basketball court.  These are just 

some of the programs that have been beneficial to the community in the past but are not an 

exhaustive or restrictive list of services that a new operator may or must provide in their 

proposal.  The City will evaluate proposals based on the selection criteria outlined in the next 

section. 



3  

IV. PROPOSAL SELECTION CRITERIA 

 

The intent of the City is to select a well-qualified operator that is capable and experienced in 

operating a facility consistent with the terms of this proposal request. The most competitive 

proposals will be those that propose a facility that creates a quality environment for the 

community that can operate (financially) on its own, including facility staffing. The ultimate 

selection criteria for the facility will be based upon several key components including: 

 

• Operator’s ability to provide service to all residents: 

❖ Residents of all age groups 

❖ Residents with limited incomes 

❖ Residents that speak Spanish or limited English 

❖ Residents with a disability 

❖ Handicap accessible programs 

❖ Handicap accessible activities 

• Operator Qualifications 

❖ Facilities operation knowledge and or experience 

❖ Financial capability to operate a successful community-based facility 

• Operator Proposal 

❖ Completeness and Comprehensiveness 

❖ Operators programming 

❖ Operators planning 

❖ Responsiveness to City’s needs 

❖ Potential benefit to the City 

❖ Innovative approach 

❖ Cost effectiveness 

❖ Highest and best use of the site 

❖ Sustainability 

❖ Benefit to the community 

❖ Project feasibility 

❖ Transition timeline 

• Core business values aligned with the City’s core values 

❖ Respect 

❖ Diversity 

❖ Teamwork 

❖ Professionalism 

❖ Ethical behavior 

❖ Community involvement 

❖ Quality customer service 



4  

V. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

1. Identification – Describe the Contractor and identify its members, with names, physical 

addresses, email addresses, fax numbers, and phone numbers of key representatives. Provide 

relevant qualifications and program specific experience of the Contractor included as part of 

the entity. Identify the person or persons with authority to represent and make legally binding 

commitments on behalf of the respondents. Also, identify any known team members: e.g. 

program coordinators, directors, and staff. 

 

2. Programming/Services – Provide a proposed use of the facility including, but not limited to, 

programming (by age grouping if appropriate) and membership assumptions. Proposed 

programs should be complimentary to programs already provided by other organizations in 

the community. 

 

3. Ongoing Operations Finance Plan/Performa – Provide a complete plan including operation 

costs necessary to have a stabilized operation including a financing plan (i.e. assumptions 

regarding membership, dues, equity and appropriate philanthropy). 

 

4. Capital/Facility Improvements – If the proposal puts forward the need to make capital or 

facility improvements to the building, please provide a description of the proposed financing 

plan that addresses the capital/facility improvements. 

 

5. Timeline – Provide a comprehensive tentative timeline. The timeline should begin upon a 

finalization of negotiations, addressing startup, move-in and any timing issues through 

operational start-up. 

 

6. Resumes/Operator – Entity Information: Provide descriptions of the proposed team 

assembled for the operation and their backgrounds. Identify the structure and depth of the 

proposed operation (i.e., program directors, facility directors, etc.). 

 

7. Current Programming/Operations – Provide a synopsis of current programming operations 

underway. At a minimum, please include location, size or operations, sample of 

programming and operation costs. 

 

8. References – As applicable, provide contact information of other public agencies and/or 

nonprofits that you have partnered with to provide comparable services and programming in 

other jurisdictions. 

 

9. Additional Information – As appropriate, provide any additional information, 

documentation, references or examples that may be helpful in demonstrating that your 

proposal is the best fit for the City and community. 



5  

VI. INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS 

 

Pre-proposal Meeting 

A pre-proposal meeting will be held Tuesday, November 3, 2020 at 2:00 PM at Arkansas City 

Hall Boardroom located at 216 Walnut Street, Texarkana, Arkansas 71854.  All prospective   

proposers are strongly encouraged to attend to ask questions regarding the proposal or to address 

any concerns after touring the building. 

 

Examination of Proposal Documents 

By submitting a proposal, the proposer represents that it has thoroughly examined and 

become familiar with the services required under this RFP, and that it is capable of 

delivering quality services to the City. 

 

Addenda/Clarifications 

Questions or comments regarding this RFP must be put in writing via postal mail or email and 

received by the City no later than 2:00 PM, Monday, November 2, 2020. Correspondence shall be 

addressed to: 

Tyler Richards, Director of Public Works 

And 

Tracie Lee, Assistant Director of Public Works 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

P.O. Box 2711 

Texarkana, TX 75504 

 

Or emailed to: 

ar.publicworksdepartment@txkusa.org  

tyler.richards@txkusa.org 

tracie.lee@txkusa.org 

 

Responses from the City will be communicated in writing via email to all recipients of this RFP.  

Inquiries received after the date and time slated will not be accepted and will be returned to 

senders without a response. 

 

Submission of Proposals 

All proposals shall be delivered to: City of Texarkana, Public Works Department, 216 Walnut 

Street/P.O. Box 2711 Texarkana, Arkansas 71854 

 

Proposals must be delivered to Texarkana City Hall no later than 5:00 pm on Tuesday, 

November 10, 2020. 

 

All proposals received after that time will be returned to the Proposer unopened. 

 

The Proposer shall submit 5 copies of its proposal in a sealed envelope, addressed as noted 

above, bearing the Proposers name and address and clearly marked 

 

“RFP - OPERATION OF THE IRON MOUNTAIN NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER” 

mailto:ar.publicworksdepartment@txkusa.org
mailto:tyler.richards@txkusa.org
mailto:tracie.lee@txkusa.org


6  

Withdrawal of Proposals 

A Proposer may withdraw its proposal at any time before the expiration of the time for 

submission of proposals as provided in the RFP by delivering a written request for withdrawal 

signed by, or on behalf of the Proposer. 

 

Rights of City of Texarkana This RFP does not commit the City to enter into a Contract, 

nor does it obligate the City to pay for any costs incurred in preparation and submission of 

proposals or in anticipation of a contract. 

 

The City reserves the right to: 

• Make the selection based on its sole discretion. 

• Reject any and all proposals without prejudice. 

• Issue subsequent Requests for Proposal. 

• Postpone opening for its own convenience. 

• Remedy technical errors in the Request of Proposal process. 

• Approve or disapprove of the use of particular subcontractors. 

• Negotiate with any, all, or none of the Proposers. 

• Solicit best and final offers from all or some of the Proposers. 

• Accept other than the lowest offer. 

• Waive informalities and irregularities in the proposal. 

 

Contract Type 

It is anticipated that the agreement resulting from this solicitation, if awarded will be Lease 

Agreement for Services.  A sample Lease Agreement for Services is provided (Attachment “A”). 

 

Proposers shall be prepared to accept the terms and conditions of the Agreement. If a proposer 

desires to take exception to the Agreement, proposer shall provide the following information as a 

section of the Proposal identified as “Exception to the Agreement”: 

 

1. Proposer shall clearly identify each proposed change to the Agreement, including all 

relevant Attachments. 

2. Proposer shall furnish the reasons for as well as specific recommendations for alternative 

language. 

 

The above factors will be taken into account in evaluating proposals. Proposals that take 

substantial exceptions to the Agreement may be determined by the City, at its sole discretion, to 

be unacceptable and no longer considered for award. 

 

Collusion 

By submitting a proposal, each proposer represents and warrants that its proposal is genuine and 

not a sham or collusive or made in the interest of or on behalf of any person not named therein; 

that the proposer has not directly, induced or solicited any other person to submit a sham 

proposal or any other person to refrain from submitting a proposal; and that the proposer had not 

in any manner sought collusion to secure any improper advantage over any other person 

submitting a proposal. 



7  

VII. PROPOSED TERM OF CONTRACT 

 

The term of the contract is five years, January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2025 with three (3) 

options for five (5) year extensions. 

 

VIII. TENTATIVE SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION* 
 

RFP Advertised 

Pre-proposal Meeting 

Written Question/Clarifications Submittal Deadline 

Questions/Clarifications Responses Emailed  

Proposals Due 

Meeting with Finalists, City Manager and Public Works Staff 

Agreement Presented to Board for Review and Approval 

10-04 & 11-20  

11-03-20 @ 2 PM 

11-02-20 @ 2 PM 
11-05-20 @ 2 PM 
11-10-20 @ 5 PM 

11-24-20 @ 11:30 AM 

12-07-20 @   6:00 PM 

New Agreement takes effect 01-01-20 

* All dates subject to extensions depending on staff and City Board availability 



8  

ATTACHMENT “A” 

 
CITY OF TEXARKANA IRON MOUNTAINNEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 
 

INDEX 

1. Purpose 

2. Term 

3. Equipment and Furnishings 

4. Hours of Operation and Use 

5. Insurance Coverage 

6. Annual Financial Statements 

7. Annual Fee Schedule 

8. Center Rules & Regulations 

9. Incorporation and Bylaws 

10. Annual List of Board Members 

11. Ordinances and Regulations 

12. Signage 

13. City Access to Premises 

14. Lease Assignment 

15. Violation of Lease Terms 

16. Expiration or Termination of Lease 

17. Utilities and Facility Maintenance 

18. Other Conditions of Lease Agreement 

 

Attachment A:  (Lease Agreement) 

What is Routine Maintenance? 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 26, Article II, Sections 26-28 and 

26-29 of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances to provide 

for revisions to water and sewer rates. (TWU) Executive Director JD 

Phillips and TWU Finance Director Jim Cornelius  

An emergency clause is requested.  An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: January 19, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT:   Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Texarkana Water Utilities 

REQUEST: Adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 26, Article II, Sections 26-28 and 

26-29 of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances to provide 

for revisions to water and sewer rates.  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY:  

EXPENSE REQUIRED:  

AMOUNT BUDGETED:  

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Utility staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance  

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26, 

ARTICLE II, SECTIONS 26-28 AND 26-29 OF THE 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS, CODE OF 

ORDINANCES TO PROVIDE FOR REVISIONS 

TO WATER AND SEWER RATES; FOR 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 

that: 

Section 1:   Chapter 26, Article II, of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of 

Ordinances, is hereby amended by adopting the following rates with to be effective and 

implemented in the utility’s next occurring billing cycle occurring on or after the date upon 

which this Ordinance becomes effective, to wit: 

The rates for residential water customers in the initial chart at Section 26-28(a)(1) 

are amended as follows: 

Water 

Residential  

Customers 

  Inside Outside  

[a.] Minimum charge for 2,000 gallons $11.02530 $16.53795 

[b.] Volume charge per 1,000 gallons over 2,000 gallons $4.08219  $6.12328 

And, further, the rates for commercial water customers in the chart at Section 

26-28(a)(2) are amended as follows: 

Water 

Commercial Customers 
Inside Outside 

Minimum charge for 2,000 gallons: 

 5/8″ Meter $12.54057 $18.81086 



 1″ Meter $14.31593 $21.47389 

 1.5″ Meter $16.12521 $24.18781 

 2″ Meter $17.91187 $26.86781 

 3″ Meter $35.82374 $53.73562 

 4″ Meter $53.73562 $80.60342 

 6″ Meter and over $89.57067 $134.35600 

Volume charge per 1,000 gallons over 2,000 gallons $3.05316 $4.57974 

 And, further, the rates for residential sewer customers in the chart at Section 26-

29(a)(1) are amended as follows:   

Sewer 

Residential 

Inside Outside 

Minimum Charge for 2,000 Gallons $12.97028 $19.45541 

Volume Charge per 1,000 gallons for next 13,000 

gallons 

$4.65890 $6.98834 

Maximum Charge 15,000 gallons total   

 And, further, the rates for commercial and other sewer customers in the chart at 

Section 26-29(a)(2) are amended as follows: 

Sewer  

Commercial Customers 

Inside Outside 

Minimum Charge for 2,000 Gallons $12.97028 $19.45541 

Volume Charge per 1,000 gallons for next 13,000 

gallons 

$5.43915 $8.15872 

Maximum Charge 15,000 gallons total   



Unmetered Sewer Only   

Water Supplied by Sources other than TWU $36.21200 $54.31800 

 Section 2.  Except as specifically set forth above, Chapter 26, Article II of the Code 

remains unmodified hereby and in full force and effect.   

Section 3:  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety (including the need to promptly implement the revised rates contained 

herein and prior to the next occurring billing cycle in order to best meet the needs of the 

utility and the services provided thereby), and a separate and distinct vote having been 

taken on this emergency clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this 

ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of January, 2021. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) FY 

2020-2021 Budget. (TWU) Executive Director JD Phillips and TWU 

Finance Director Jim Cornelius  

AGENDA DATE: January 19, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Texarkana Water Utilities 

REQUEST: Approve TWU FY 2020-2021 Budget 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approve TWU FY 2020-2021 Budget 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and Utility staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and TWU FY 2020-2021 Budget 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, the FY 2020-2021 Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) budget has 

been submitted to the Board of Directors for review; and   

 WHEREAS, Utility staff recommends approval of the budget as so presented to 

the Board with the income and expense allocations set forth therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Utility staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the TWU budget for fiscal year 2020-2021, attached 

hereto and made a part hereof, is hereby approved.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of January, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 
 

 

_________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney  



Te x a r k a n a  Wa t e r  
U t i l i t i e s  

 
2021 Budget 

Approved by Texarkana, TX City Council, September 14, 2020   Pending Approval by Texarkana, AR Board of Directors 

DRAFT





i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION I – REVENUE FUNDS  

Combined Revenue Funds …………………………………………………………...   1 
Texas Revenue Combined (Contains Interfund Transfers) …………………………   
Texas Revenue Fund (Contains Interfund Transfers) ………………………………   
I.P. Water Revenue Fund (Contains Interfund Transfers) ……………………….....   
Combined Arkansas, Mandeville, Union (Contains Interfund Transfers) …….……   
Arkansas Revenue Fund (Contains Interfund Transfers) ………………………….. 
Mandeville Revenue Fund (Contains Interfund Transfers) ……………………....... 
Union Revenue Fund (Contains Interfund Transfers) …………………………........ 
 
SECTION II – BOND FUNDS 

Arkansas 1998 Bond Fund ………………………………………………………........ 
Arkansas 1998-B Bond Fund …………………………………………………………. 
Arkansas 2001 Bond Fund ……………………………………………………………. 
Arkansas 2004-A Bond Fund …………………………………………………..…….. 
Arkansas 2004-B Bond Fund (AR, MNDVL & UN) ………………………….……… 
Arkansas 2007 Refunding Bond Fund ………………………………………….……  
Arkansas 2007 Bond Reserve Fund …………………………………………………. 
Texas 2013 Bond Fund ……………………………………………………………...... 
Texas 2020 Refunding Bond Fund …………………………………………………… 
Texas Bond Reserve Fund ……………………………………………………………. 
 
SECTION III – CAPITAL FUNDS 

Arkansas Capital Improvement Fund ……………………………………………….. 
Arkansas Infrastructure Fund ………………………………………………………… 
Arkansas Millwood Water Rights Fund ……………………………………………… 
Arkansas Personnel Policy Fund ……………………………………………………. 
Millwood WTP Depreciation Fund …………………………………………………… 
North Texarkana WWTP Depreciation Fund ………………………………………. 
Mandeville Depreciation Fund …………………………………………………….…. 
Union Depreciation Fund …………………………………………………………......  
Texas Capital Improvement Fund ………………………………….……….....……. 
Texas Infrastructure Fund …………………………………………………….……... 
Wright Patman COE Cost Fund ……………………………………………....…..... 
Texas 2013 Bond Construction Fund ………….…………………………..….……. 
Texas Personnel Policy Fund ……………………………………...……………...... 
Wagner Creek Capital Improvement Fund …………………………………….…... 
LTWSC Capital Improvement Fund ………………………………………………… 
South Regional WWTP Depreciation Fund ………………………………………… 
South Regional WWTP Depreciation Fund – Ten Year Plan …………………….. 
Composting Fund ……………………………………………………………................. 
Equipment Acquisition Fund ……………………………………………………...……. 
Technology Fund …………………………………………………………………….….. 

3 
5 
7 
8 

10 
12 
13 

 
 

14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 

 
 

24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
40 
41 
42 

43-54 
55-68 

DRAFT



ii 
 

SECTION IV – OPERATING BUDGETS 

Administration – 110 ………………………………………………………………….... 
Accounting – 210 ……………………………………………………………….…….... 
Information Technology – 230 ……………………………………………..……..…… 
Customer Service – 310 ……………………………………………………………….. 
Field Services – 330 …………………………………………………………..,............ 
Wright Patman Water Treatment Plant – 410 ……………………………….………. 
Millwood Water Treatment Plant – 420 …………………………………….……....... 
Water Distribution – Graphic Packaging (formerly International Paper) – 490 ……… 
Wagner Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 520 ……………………….….......... 
South Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant – 530 …………………….…………. 
North Texarkana Wastewater Treatment Plant – 540 ………………….……......... 
Composting – 580 ………………………………………………………….………….. 
Field Operations/Administration – 610 ……………………………….………….….. 
Water/Sewer Construction – 612 …………………………………….………….…... 
Water Distribution – 620 ………………………………………………..…………….. 
Water Distribution – TexAmericas – 622 …………………………………………… 
Sewer Collection – 630 ……………………………………………………….………. 
Fleet Services Center – 640 …………………………………………….…….……... 
Engineering Design – 710 ……………………………………………………...……. 
Engineering – Infiltration & Inflow Abatement – 720 ……………………………… 
GIS Development – 740 …………………………………………………………....... 
Environmental Services – 750 …………………………………………………….… 
Leary – 830/831 ………………………………………………………………………. 
Miller County Public Water Authority – 833/834 …………………………………... 
 

SECTION V – DEBT SERVICES 

Combined Arkansas and Texas 

All Revenue Bonds ……………………………………………………………………. 
Arkansas Revenue Bonds  

All Revenue Bonds ……………………………………………………………………. 
1998 Sewer Facilities Construction Revenue Bonds ………………….………….. 
1998-B Sewer Facilities Construction Revenue Bonds …………………………… 
2001 Sewer Facilities Construction Revenue Bonds ……………………………… 
2004-A Water Facilities Acquisition Revenue Bond ……………………………..... 
2004-B Water Facilities Improvement Revenue Bond ……………………………. 
2007 Waterworks Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds ………………………….. 
Texas Revenue Bonds  

All Revenue Bonds ……………………………………………………………………. 
2013 Waterworks & Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds …………………… 
2020 General Obligation Refunding Bonds ………………………………………… 
 

 
69 
72 
75 
78 
81 
84            
88 
91 
92 
95 
99 

102 
105 
108 
111 
114 
115 
118 
121 
125 
128 
131 
134 
139 

 
 
 

144 
 

145 
146 
147 
148 
149 
150 
151 

 
152 
153 
154 

 
 

 

DRAFT



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section I 
Revenue Funds 

 

 
  

DRAFT





1

DRAFT



2

DRAFT



3

DRAFT



4

DRAFT



5

DRAFT



6

DRAFT



7

DRAFT



DRAFT

8



DRAFT

9



DRAFT

10



DRAFT

11



12

DRAFT



13

DRAFT





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section II 
Bond Funds 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT





14

DRAFT



15

DRAFT



16

DRAFT



17

DRAFT



18

DRAFT



19

DRAFT



20

DRAFT



21

DRAFT



22

DRAFTDRAFT



23

DRAFT



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section III 
Capital Funds 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT





24

DRAFT



25

DRAFT



26

DRAFT



27

DRAFT



28

DRAFT



29

DRAFT



30

DRAFT



31

DRAFT



32

DRAFT



33

DRAFT



34

DRAFT



35

DRAFT



36

DRAFT



37

DRAFT



38

DRAFT



39

DRAFT



40

DRAFT



41

DRAFT



42

DRAFT



43

DRAFT



44

DRAFT



45

DRAFT



46

DRAFT



47

DRAFT



48

DRAFT



49

DRAFT



50

DRAFT



51

DRAFT



52

DRAFT



53

DRAFT



54

DRAFT



55

DRAFT



56

DRAFT



57

DRAFT



58

DRAFT



59

DRAFT



60

DRAFT



61

DRAFT



62

DRAFT



63

DRAFT



64

DRAFT



65

DRAFT



66

DRAFT



67

DRAFT



68

DRAFT





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section IV 
Operating Budgets 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT





69

DRAFT





70

DRAFT



71

DRAFT



72

DRAFT





73

DRAFT



74

DRAFT



75

DRAFT





76

DRAFT



77

DRAFT



78

DRAFT





79

DRAFT



80

DRAFT



81

DRAFT





82

DRAFT



83

DRAFT



84

DRAFT



85

DRAFT



86

DRAFT



87

DRAFT



88

DRAFT





89

DRAFT



90

DRAFT



91

DRAFT





92

DRAFT





93

DRAFT



94

DRAFT



95

DRAFT





96

DRAFT



97

DRAFT



98

DRAFT





99

DRAFT





100

DRAFT



101

DRAFT



102

DRAFT





103

DRAFT



104

DRAFT



105

DRAFT





106

DRAFT



107

DRAFT



108

DRAFT





109

DRAFT



110

DRAFT



111

DRAFT





112

DRAFT



113

DRAFT



114

DRAFT





115

DRAFT





116

DRAFT



117

DRAFT



118

DRAFT





119

DRAFT



120

DRAFT



121

DRAFT



122

DRAFT



123

DRAFT



124

DRAFT



125

DRAFT





126

DRAFT



127

DRAFT



128

DRAFT





129

DRAFT



130

DRAFT



131

DRAFT





132

DRAFT



133

DRAFT



134

DRAFT





135

DRAFT



136

DRAFT



137

DRAFT



138

DRAFT



139

DRAFT





140

DRAFT



141

DRAFT



142

DRAFT



143

DRAFT



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section V 
Debt Services 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT





144

DRAFT



145

DRAFT



146

DRAFT



147

DRAFT



148

DRAFT



149

DRAFT



150

DRAFT



151

DRAFT



152

DRAFT



153

DRAFT



154

DRAFT


	Top
	1.	Minutes
	item_01192021_ccd_minutes
	item_1_01042021_minutes

	2.	TAFD Staff Vehicle
	item_01192021_tafd_staff vehicle
	item_2_01192021_Resolution_TAFD Chevrolet Tahoe. doc
	item_01192021_tafd_staff vehicle

	3.	2021 CNB Local Depository Agreement
	01192021_2021 CNB Local Depository Agreement
	item_3_01192021_Resolution_Depository Agreement
	item_3_01192021_2021 CNB Local Depository Agreement

	4.	Iron Mountain Center Agreement
	item_5_01192021_pwd_iron mt center
	item_5_01192021_resolution_Iron Mountain Center
	LaToyia Hawkins-Williams Proposal
	Latoyia Hawkins Williams Lease Agreement
	Know Your Worth Proposal
	Know Your Worth Ministry Lease Agreement
	RFP Iron Mountain Center Final

	5.	Water and sewer rate increase
	item_water and sewer rate increase
	ordinance_Water and Sewer Rate Increase

	6.	TWU FY2020-2021 Budget
	item_7_01042021_twu_2021 budget
	item_4_01192021_Resolution_TWU FY 20-21 Budget
	item_4_01192021_twu_2021 budge updated Nov 30

	Bottom

